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NORCON PLC

We the Board of Directors are happy to present to our Shareholders yet another profitable year. The FY 2011 results conclude
a broadly flat year for Norcon as it worked to navigate the widespread global economic challenges; whilst at the same time
continue to take an early advantage of steadily increasing LTE capital investments taking place in the telecommunications
arena.
The highlights of our year are referenced below:

Financial Highlights
Trading has been broadly consistent with the management team’s revised FY expectations, as set out in the Trading Update
of 15 February 2012:
•

Revenue of US$66.6m (FY 2010: US$68.6m)

•

Operating profits of US$6.2m (FY 2010: US$7.3m)

•

Profit before tax of US$5.4m (FY 2010: US$6.7m)

•

Profit after tax of US$3.5m (FY 2010: US$4.3m)

•

Cash at year end increased to US$12.5m (FY 2010: US$12.1m)

•

Pro forma earnings per share on a basic basis of US$0.07 (FY 2010: US$0.09) with the number of shares of 48,800,808
during the year compared to the weighted average number of shares of 47,174,875 the prior year

•

Dividend declared related to the final 2011 results of US$1m, a yield of 5% at the current share price

Operational Highlights
•

Client engagements in core markets renewed, in addition to new mandates secured in key expansion territories

•

Organisation strengthened with the creation of the role and recruitment of a new Chief Operating Officer with further key
personnel targeted to join in 2012 to support our geographical as well as services expansion

•

Strategy remains unchanged with increased focus on going into new verticals and new geographies

•

Favourable long-term market drivers are in place
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NORCON PLC

Chairman’s Statement
This has undoubtedly been a difficult year for global business. Given the economic pressures our economies and our own
Norcon business have faced, it is encouraging to report that the Company has again delivered a profitable outturn to the year
ended 31 December 2011.
The growth in our profitability in 2011 has, as outlined in our Trading Update of 15 February 2012, been held back due to
some additional cost items and investment in new territories.
To some degree, these challenges mask the positive momentum that has carried through in our business operations this year.
We have strengthened our team creating the position of Chief Operating Officer. We have also continued to renew our
mandates with our closest, most long-standing customers whilst making additional and early in-roads into new markets and
geographies.
Our focus, as a company and as a Board, remains the pursuit of profitable growth. To that end, our efforts to expand our
business have continued into the start of Financial Year 2012 and will remain our key priority throughout the year ahead.
We continue to benefit from a dedicated, flexible and highly capable team in the Norcon Group. This team is our greatest asset
as a firm and I thank each and every Norcon colleague for their commitment, enthusiasm and efforts this year.

Trond Tostrup
Chairman
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NORCON PLC

Chief Executive’s Review
Operational Development
In light of the global situation, we are satisfied with our performance for 2011. In 2012, Norcon will increase emphasis on
geographical expansion and the development of new services, thus speeding up the implementation of its long-term
diversification strategy.
Our core business relationships continue to be strong, and we will continue to focus on these, as they will still be a key to our
successful implementation of our geographical and services expansion. We recently signed a major contract for 2012, and
are in the final stages of negotiating other substantial contracts, which have duration beyond 2012. At the end of April we will
have a new Country Manager in Saudi Arabia in place, who will focus on existing clients and the establishment of new clients
within the Kingdom. We are therefore optimistic with regards to the potential within Saudi Arabia.
As the telecom industry continues to invest in new technology, currently the roll out of LTE and FTTH networks which we have
developed as a core expertise, we have been able to secure business with new clients outside our core region in 2011,
although initially on a fairly small scale.
We have added clients in new markets in 2011, such as in Oman, Thailand, Malaysia, Scandinavia, Russia and Ukraine.

Building a team for the future
Norcon Group has a strong and stable team in place, which has done an impressive job in maintaining and securing new
business in a difficult environment. As we will put strong emphasis on our geographical and services expansion in 2012 and
onwards, we have decided to use 2012 to build the team to ensure successful implementation of this strategy. We are very
pleased that, as outlined in our Interim Results on 21 September 2011, we have recruited a new COO with proven expertise
in the telecom services industry. He has already made an impact, working to develop the new service expansion lines and
with the right people to support our future growth plans.
We are thus set to make numerous new select technical and sales hires in 2012 with the benefits accruing per plan with full
effect in 2013. The first few of these additional key hires will join the business in April 2012, including the recruitment to fill the
newly created position of CTO.
In order to ensure success in our expansion strategy, we have already established a regional office in the US to service a
contract that we have secured with one of the major players in the business. We will further establish an office for MEA outside
of Saudi Arabia, APAC and Europe. These offices will be staffed by carefully selected individuals with experience from their
respective regions. As part of our strategy, we are also looking to partner with product companies where we can structure
solutions around their offerings.

Effect on 2012 P&L and turnover
The investments we are making in maintaining and building new business for the future will not give a considerable
contribution to turnover until 2013. This is a main driver for our new initiatives outside our present main region of business.
The investments will have an impact on our profits in 2012, but the Board of Directors believe firmly that it will pay off well in
the years to come.
Norcon’s relationships with its core customers continue to be as strong as ever with client retention rates remaining well above
90% consistent with prior years. The unbilled receivables as of year end 2011 have been invoiced and receivables are on track
for collection as the year progresses. We therefore expect 2012 to be a strong year in terms of cash generation given the
receivable balances as of year end.

5
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NORCON PLC

Chief Executive’s Review

continued

Dividend Policy and Final Dividend for 2011
The Board now proposes to pay out a dividend of at least 25% of net income going forward, on an annual basis, as a policy.
As the Company did not pay an interim dividend for this financial year, the final dividend for 2011 will be US$1,000,000,
payable following the AGM in June 2012. The Board will in addition consider special dividends each year on a case by case
basis.
Our policy will likewise be to pay an interim dividend in the coming years.

Outlook
We remain positive about our ability to win new contracts and position ourselves in 2012, making additional investments in
the development of the company as described. We are confident that opportunities exist for Norcon to continue to grow
organically over the longer term given the new contracts and investments in our core market, as well as the increased pace
of international diversification. We look forward with confidence to the years ahead and the contributions our new efforts will
bring to the Company.
It is with great excitement that I look forward to the contributions of our expanded team in the years ahead.
Arnold Rørholt
Chief Executive Officer
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Financial Review
We are pleased to release our audited numbers for the full year 2011.

Summary
Norcon’s performance during the past twelve months has been profitable, albeit at a lower level than in the prior year as
explained above, with stronger net asset position (approximately US$25m) at the year end.
Revenue for 2011 totalled US$66.6m (FY 2010: US$68.6m). The decrease was primarily due to a shortfall in new business.
Gross profit for 2011 was US$10.7m (FY 2010: US$12.1m).
Gross margin for 2011 was 16% for the year (FY 2010: 18%), due to increased cost of sales proportionally related to increased
competition and start-up expenses in the new projects in Saudi Arabia as well as the other territories.
Profit before tax of US$5.4m for 2011 compared to the 2010 figure of US$6.7m due to lower gross margin and higher finance
expenses (notably exchange rate losses). Administration expenses were approximately US$0.3m lower in 2011 than 2010,
but not sufficient to compensate for the lower gross margin.
Profit after tax of US$3.5m for 2011 compared to the 2010 figure of US$4.3m. The percentage tax accrued for 2011 was
35% versus 36% in 2010. The underlying tax rates in the respective jurisdictions are detailed in the notes.
Pro forma basic earnings per share were US$0.07 for the full year compared to the US$0.09 earnings per share for 2010. The
weighted average number of shares in 2011 was 48,800,808 compared to 47,174,875 in 2010 respectively.

Costs
Cost of sales totalled US$55.9m for the period compared to US$56.5m in 2010. While costs of sales did decrease, it
decreased proportionally less than revenue.
Other operating costs, including net financial, operating and administration expenses totalled US$4.5m for the period down
from US$4.8m in 2010.
Net other costs increased to US$0.8m from US$0.6m, largely related to increased financial expenses.

Taxation
Taxes were accrued in the amount of US$1.9m during 2011 (FY 2010: US$2.4m). The blended effective tax rate based on
the tax accruals made for each business unit decreased to 35% in 2011 from 36% in 2010. The underlying tax rates in the
countries in which we operate are detailed in the Notes.

Foreign Exchange
The Company is continuing its policy of denominating revenue and expenses either in the local currency if pegged to the US
dollar or in US dollars to the extent feasible. Foreign exchange translation gains and losses in the period are noted in the
accounts, and did increase significantly in 2012 compared to 2011 primarily due to the fluctuation of the US dollar to the
Kuwaiti dinar.

Cash Flow
Cash flow continues to be positive for the year as a whole. Cash conversion decelerated in 2011 compared to 2010 due to
the large volume of unbilled receivables. Such unbilled receivables were invoiced in 2012 prior to the date of this statement,
and collections of such amounts will create positive cash momentum and increased operational cash conversion in 2012.

7
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NORCON PLC

Financial Review

continued

Balance Sheet
The Balance Sheet performance of the Company was quite strong.
Gross and net cash balances improved year on year.
As at 31 December 2011, cash was US$12.5m (FY 2010: US$12.1m) with positive net cash of US$7.1m (FY 2010:
US$6.1m).
The Company remains net asset positive, with net assets increasing significantly to US$25.4m in 2011 (FY 2010: US$22.8m).
Total trade and other receivables increased to US$35.2m from US$31.6m in the prior year. Trade and unbilled receivable
balances increased year on year to a total of US$30.6m from a total of US$24.6m. Work in Process (unbilled receivables)
increased to US$10.1m in 2011 compared to US$4.4m in 2010. Retentions receivable decreased to US$0.5m compared to
US$3.9m in 2010.
Trade payables have increased significantly to US$6.5m as of year end 2011 compared to US$4.0m in the preceding year.
In non-current liabilities, the accrual related to employees terminal benefits increased to US$10.5m from US$9.8m with the
additional accrual for the year.
The final dividend for 2011 has been declared in the amount of US$1m.
Retained earnings and other reserves totalled US$25.4m as at the end of 2011 compared to US$22.8m as at the end of the
2010.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The Consolidated Financial Statements of Norcon and its branches and subsidiary companies have been audited by PKF
Savvides & Co Ltd., the Company’s auditor. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union (EU) under the historical cost
convention.
Marne Martin
Chief Financial Officer
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Board of Directors Report
The Board of Directors presents its report and audited consolidated financial statements of NORCON PLC and its subsidiaries
(the Group) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Incorporation
The Company NORCON PLC was incorporated in the Isle of Man on 2 June 2008, as a company limited by shares under the
Isle of Man companies act 2006. On 28 July 2008, the company became public and had been admitted for trading at the AIM
of the London Stock Exchange.

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Group, which are unchanged from last year, and are the provision of project management and
outsourcing services as well as consulting engineers. The group comprises of the holding company Norcon PLC, registered
in the Isle of Man, the subsidiary company Norconsult Telematics Limited, registered in Cyprus (which includes
branches/operations in Saudi Arabia, U.A.E. Abu Dhabi, Kuwait, Indonesia and Malaysia) and its subsidiary companies
Norconsult Telematics and Company LLC registered in the Sultanate of Oman, Norconsult Telematics AS registered in Norway,
Norcon Global Management & Consulting Ltd registered in Cyprus, Norconsult Telematics Integrated Solution Co. Ltd
registered in the Republic of Sudan (dormant), Norconsult Telematics Ltd registered in Southern Sudan (dormant) and the
associate company Norconsult Telematics (Saudi) Ltd registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
In 2011 the group has operated in the following countries: Saudi Arabia, Indonesia, Kuwait, UAE Abu Dhabi, Oman, Malaysia,
Norway, Russia, Ukraine, Sweden and Thailand.

Review of current position, future developments and significant risks
The Group’s development to date, financial results and position as presented in the financial statements are considered satisfactory.

Operational Development
In light of the global situation, we are satisfied with our performance for 2011. In 2012, Norcon will increase emphasis on
geographical expansion and the development of new services, thus speeding up the implementation of its long term
diversification strategy.
Our core business relationships continue to be strong, and we will continue to focus on these, as they will still be a key to our
successful implementation of our geographical and services expansion. We recently signed a major contract for 2012, and
are in the final stages of negotiating other substantial contracts, which have duration beyond 2012. In the end of April we will
have a new Country Manager in Saudi Arabia in place, who will focus on existing clients and the establishment of new clients
within the Kingdom. We are thus optimistic with regard to the potential within Saudi Arabia.
As the telecom industry continues to invest in new technology, currently the roll out of LTE and FTTH networks which we have
developed as a core expertise, we have been able to secure business with new clients outside our core region in 2011,
although initially at a fairly small scale.
We have added clients in new markets, e.g. Oman, Thailand, Malaysia, Scandinavia, Russia and Ukraine in 2011.

Building a team for the future
Norcon Group has a strong and stable team in place, which has done an impressive job in maintaining and securing new
business in a difficult environment. As we will put strong emphasis on our geographical and services expansion in 2012 and
onwards, we have decided to use 2012 to build the team to ensure successful implementation of this strategy. We are very
pleased that, as outlined in our Interim Results on 21 September 2011, we have recruited a COO with proven expertise in the
telecom services industry. He has already made an impact, working to develop the new service expansion lines and with the
right people to support our future growth plans.
We are thus set to make numerous new select technical and sales hires in 2012, with the benefits accruing per plan with full
effect in 2013. The first few of these additional key hires will join the business in April 2012, including the recruitment to fill the
newly created position of CTO.

9
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NORCON PLC

Board of Directors Report

continued

In order to ensure success in our expansion strategy, we have already established a regional office in the US, to service a
contract that we have secured with one of the major players in the business. We will further establish an office for MEA outside
of Saudi Arabia, APAC and Europe. These offices will be staffed by carefully selected individuals with experience from their
respective regions. As part of our strategy, we are also looking to partner with product companies where we can structure
solutions around their offerings.

Effect on 2012 P&L and turnover
The investments we are making in maintaining and building new business for the future will not give a considerable
contribution to turnover until 2013. This is a main driver for our new initiatives outside our present main region of business.
The investments will have an impact on our profits in 2012, but the Board of Directors believe firmly that it will pay off well in
the years to come.
Norcon’s relationships with its core customers continue to be as strong as ever with client retention rates remaining well above
90% consistent with prior years. The unbilled receivables as of year end 2011 have been invoiced and receivables are on track
for collection as the year progresses. We thus expect 2012 to be a strong year in terms of cash generation given the receivable
balances as of year end.

Outlook
We remain positive about our prospects to win new contracts and position ourselves in 2012, making such investments in the
development of the company as described. We are confident that opportunities exist for Norcon to continue to grow
organically over the longer term given the new contracts and investments in our core market, as well as the increased pace
of international diversification. We look forward with confidence to the years ahead and the contributions our new efforts will
bring to the Company. It is with great excitement that I look forward to the contributions of our expanded team in the years
ahead.
The main risks and uncertainties faced by the Group and the steps taken to manage these risks are described in note 3 of
the financial statements.

Results and Dividends
The Group’s results for the year are set out on page 13. The Board of Directors recommends the payment of a dividend as
detailed below and the remaining net profit for the year is retained.

Dividend Policy and Final Dividend for 2011
In October 2011, the Board of Directors paid dividend of US$1.151.699 out of the 2010 profits.
The Board now proposes to pay out a dividend of at least 25% of net income going forward, on an annual basis, as a policy.
As the Company did not pay an interim dividend for this financial year, the final dividend for 2011 will be US$1,000,000,
payable following the AGM in June 2012. The Board will also consider special dividends each year as a case by case basis.
Our policy will likewise be to pay an interim dividend in the coming years.

Share capital
Authorised capital
Under its Memorandum the Company fixed its share capital at 100.000.000 ordinary shares of nominal value of Stg£0,01
each.
Issued capital
The Company was admitted to trading on 28 July 2008 at AIM London Stock Exchange and issued 41.123.188 ordinary
shares of nominal value of Stg£0,01 each. In connection with the listing a total of 2.246.376 ordinary shares were sold to new
investors out of which 1.123.188 were issued at a share premium of Stg£0,68 per share and were new shares while the other
1.123.188 were sold by existing shareholders. On 9 October 2009, the company made the first issue of LTIP Award plan for
758.833 Ordinary shares Stg£0,01 each, which were admitted for trading at AIM London Stock Exchange. The total number
of shares issued following the admission of these ordinary shares were 41.881.521 (Note 22).
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NORCON PLC

Board of Directors Report

continued

On 29 March 2010, the company issued 3.521.668 new ordinary shares of Stg£0,01 each at a share premium of Stg£0,74
per share (cum dividend). On 9 April 2010 the company issued 2.639.286 ordinary shares of Stg£0,01 each at a share
premium of Stg£0,69 per share (ex dividend).
On 28 July 2010, the company made the second issue of LTIP Award plan for 758.333 ordinary shares Stg£0,01 each which
were admitted for trading on AIM London stock exchange in February 2011. The total number of shares issued thereafter are
48.800.808 ordinary shares (Note 22).

Board of Directors
The member of the Group’s Board of Directors as at 31 December 2011 and at the date of this report is presented on page 1.
All directors presently members of the Board continue in office.

Events after the reporting period
Any significant events that occurred after the end of the reporting period are described in note 31 to the financial statements.

Independent Auditors
The Independent Auditors, PKF Savvides & Co Limited, have expressed their willingness to continue in office and a resolution
giving authority to the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Director
Limassol – Cyprus, 11 April 2012
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NORCON PLC

Independent Auditors’ Report

PKF Savvides & Co Ltd
Accountants &
business advisers
To the Members of NORCON PLC
Report on the consolidated financial statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of NORCON PLC (the ‘’Company’’) and its subsidiaries
(together with the Company, the ‘Group’) on pages 13 to 42, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Board of Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and for such internal control
as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of Directors
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2011, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU.
Other matter
This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Group’s members as a body in accordance with
Section 34 of the Auditors and Statutory Audits of Annual and Consolidated Accounts Law of 2009 and for no other purpose.
We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whose
knowledge this report may come to.

Zenon Ipsarides
Certified Public Accountant and Registered Auditor
for and on behalf of
PKF Savvides & Co Ltd
Certified Public Accountants and Registered Auditors
Limassol, 11 April 2012
12
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NORCON PLC

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 December 2011

Note
6

Revenue
Cost of sales

7

2011
US$

2010
US$

66.573.366 68.597.874
(55.889.070) (56.518.184)
–––––––––––

–––––––––––

10.684.296

12.079.690

38.127
(4.536.199)
(316)

16.574
(4.808.683)
(269)

Profit from investing activities
Administration expenses
Other expenses

8

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

Operating profit

9

6.185.908

7.287.312

11

(770.636)
(1.349)

(572.476)
(1.365)

Finance costs
Share of results of associates before tax
Profit before tax
Tax

12

Net profit for the year

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

5.413.923

6.713.471

(1.874.408)

–––––––––––

3.539.515

4.292.285

–

Other comprehensive income

–––––––––––

3.539.515

Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Non controlling interests

3.549.685
(10.170)

4.294.586
(2.301)

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

Diluted earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the parent (cent)

13

The notes on pages 17 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

13

4.292.285

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

3.539.515

13

–

–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––

Basic earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the parent (cent)

(2.421.186)

–––––––––––

7,27

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

7,27

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––

4.292.285

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

9,10

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

8,72

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

225353 Norcon pp01-pp16 31/05/2012 15:36 Page 14

NORCON PLC

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
31 December 2011

ASSETS
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in associated undertakings

Note

2011
US$

2010
US$

15
16

159.957
590.211

178.334
591.560

––––––––––––

750.168

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash at bank and in hand

17
18

––––––––––––

35.263.743
12.456.037

31.556.403
12.075.188

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

48.469.948

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital
Other reserves
Retained earnings

19
20

Non controlling interests

937.100
14.569.790
7.324.122

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

25.350.316
1.835

22.831.012
12.005

10.514.890

––––––––––––

10.514.890

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Current tax liabilities

24
21
25

22.843.017

––––––––––––

9.786.806

––––––––––––

9.786.806

––––––––––––

6.542.573
5.327.290
733.044

3.966.278
6.019.868
1.785.516

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

23.117.797

––––––––––––

48.469.948

Total equity and liabilities

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

12.602.907

Total liabilities

44.401.485

937.100
14.670.759
9.742.457

––––––––––––

23

43.631.591

––––––––––––
––––––––––––
––––––––––––

25.352.151

Non current liabilities
Employees' terminal benefits

––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––

Total equity

769.894

––––––––––––

47.719.780

Total assets

––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––

11.771.662

––––––––––––

21.558.468

––––––––––––

44.401.485

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

On 11 April 2012 the Board of Directors of NORCON PLC authorised these financial statements for issue.

...................................................
Gaute Vik
Director

...................................................
Marne Elizabeth Martin
Director

...................................................
Trond Tostrup
Director

The notes on pages 17 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NORCON PLC

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2011
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Note

Balance at 1 January 2010
Total comprehensive income for the year
Issue of share capital
Dividends
Exchange difference arising on the
translation and consolidation of
foreign companies’ financial statements
Equity settled employee benefits reserve
Balance at 31 December
2010/ 1 January 2011
Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividends
Exchange difference arising on the translation
and consolidation of foreign companies’
financial statements
Balance at 31 December 2011

19
14

Share
capital
US$

Other
reserves
(Note 20)
US$

Retained
earnings
US$

833.117
–
103.983
–

8.093.742
–
6.257.283
–

8.035.624
4.294.586
–
(4.860.000)

Non controlling
Total
interests
US$
US$
16.962.483
4.294.586
6.361.266
(4.860.000)

14.306
(2.301)
–
–

Total
US$
16.976.789
4.292.285
6.361.266
(4.860.000)

–
(14.575)
(146.088)
(160.663)
–
(160.663)
–
233.340
–
233.340
–
233.340
––––––––––– ––––––––––– ––––––––––– ––––––––––– ––––––––––– –––––––––––

14

937.100
–
–

14.569.790
–
–

7.324.122
3.549.685
(1.151.699)

22.831.012
3.549.685
(1.151.699)

12.005
(10.170)
–

22.843.017
3.539.515
(1.151.699)

–
100.969
20.349
121.318
–
121.318
––––––––––– ––––––––––– ––––––––––– ––––––––––– ––––––––––– –––––––––––
937.100 14.670.759
9.742.457 25.350.316
1.835 25.352.151
––––––––––– –––––––––––
––––––––––– –––––––––––
––––––––––– –––––––––––
–––––––––––
–––––––––––
––––––––––– –––––––––––
––––––––––– –––––––––––

The notes on pages 17 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

15

225353 Norcon pp01-pp16 31/05/2012 15:36 Page 16

NORCON PLC

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended 31 December 2011
2011
US$

2010
US$

5.413.923

6.713.471

54.560
(405)

53.307
(1.033)

16

121.318
1.349
316

(160.663)
1.365
269

23
7
11

–
(38.127)
268.088

233.340
(16.574)
322.657

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Exchange difference arising on the translation of non current assets in foreign currencies
Exchange difference arising on the translation and consolidation of foreign companies’
financial statements
Share of loss from associates
Loss from the sale of property, plant and equipment
Expense recognized in comprehensive income in respect of equity settled
share based payments
Interest income
Interest expense

15

Cash flows from operations before working capital changes
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase in employees’ terminal benefits
Cash flows from operations
Tax paid

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

5.821.022
(3.707.340)
2.576.295
728.084

7.146.139
6.437.074
(8.892.670)
2.486.311

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

5.418.061
(2.926.880)

7.176.854
(2.684.498)

––––––––––––

2.491.181

Net cash flows from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest received

15

––––––––––––

(40.172)
4.078
38.127

(137.607)
–
16.574

2.033

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of share capital
Repayments of borrowings
Interest paid
Dividends paid

–
(610.341)
(268.088)
(1.151.699)

6.361.266
(501.208)
(322.657)
(4.860.000)

The notes on pages 17 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

16

677.401

––––––––––––

463.086

5.048.724

11.992.951

18

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

At end of the year

(121.033)

––––––––––––

(2.030.128)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents:
At beginning of the year

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities

4.492.356

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

––––––––––––

12.456.037

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

6.944.227

––––––––––––

11.992.951

––––––––––––
––––––––––––
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NORCON PLC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2011
1.

Incorporation and principal activities

Country of incorporation
The Company NORCON PLC (the “Company’’) was incorporated in the Isle of Man on 2 June 2008, as a company limited by
shares under the Isle of Man companies act 2006. On the 28 July 2008, the company became public and had been admitted
for trading at the AIM of the London Stock Exchange. Its registered office is at Fort Anne, Douglas, IM1 5PD, Isle of Man.
Principal activities
The principal activities of the Group, which are unchanged from last year, and are the provision of project management and
outsourcing services as well as consulting engineers. The group comprises of the holding company Norcon PLC, registered
in the Isle of Man, the subsidiary company Norconsult Telematics Limited, registered in Cyprus (which includes
branches/operations in Saudi Arabia, U.A.E. Abu Dhabi, Kuwait, Indonesia and Malaysia) and its subsidiary companies
Norconsult Telematics and Company LLC registered in the Sultanate of Oman, Norconsult Telematics AS registered in Norway,
Norcon Global Management & Consulting Ltd registered in Cyprus, Norconsult Telematics Integrated Solution Co. Ltd
registered in the Republic of Sudan (dormant), Norconsult Telematics Ltd registered in Southern Sudan (dormant) and the
associate company Norconsult Telematics (Saudi) Ltd registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
In 2011 the group has operated in the following countries: Saudi Arabia, Indonesia, Kuwait, UAE Abu Dhabi, Oman, Malaysia,
Norway, Russia, Ukraine, Sweden and Thailand.

2.

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented in these consolidated financial statements unless
otherwise stated.
Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union (EU). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and
requires Management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. It also requires the
use of assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on Management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates.
Adoption of new and revised IFRSs
During the current period the Group adopted all the new and revised IFRSs and International Accounting Standards (IAS),
which are relevant to its operations.
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements some Standards were in issue but not yet effective. The Board of
Directors expects that the adoption of these Standards in future periods will not have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
Basis of consolidation
The Group consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the parent company NORCON PLC and
the financial statements of the following: Norconsult Telematics Ltd, including Saudi Arabia, U.A.E. Abu Dhabi, Malaysia,
Kuwait and South East Asia branches of the company and the subsidiary companies Norconsult Telematics and Company
LLC, registered in the Sultanate of Oman, Norconsult Telematics AS registered in Norway, Norcon Global Management &
Consulting Ltd registered in Cyprus, Norconsult Telematics Ltd registered in Southern Sudan, Norconsult Telematics
Integrated Solutions Co. Ltd registered in Sudan and the activities of the associate company Norconsult Telematics (Saudi)
Ltd, registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
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NORCON PLC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

Year ended 31 December 2011
2.

Accounting policies (continued)

The consolidated financial statements include the audited financial statements of subsidiary Norconsult Telematics Ltd and
Saudi Arabia, U.A.E. Abu Dhabi, Kuwait, Malaysia and South East Asia branches. The financial statements of Saudi Arabia
branch, the Saudi Arabia associate and Norway subsidiaries are prepared in accordance with local accepted accounting
standards. The financial statements of the U.A.E. Abu Dhabi, Kuwait, Malaysia and South East Asia branches and the Oman
subsidiary are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
The Branch in Saudi Arabia is registered under a temporary license (No. 767) expiring on 18 October 2013.
The Branch in Abu Dhabi, UAE operates under Commercial Registration No.1003263 from the Department of Economic
Development which expires on 25 December 2012.
All inter company transactions and balances between Group companies have been eliminated during consolidation. The
financial statements are prepared in United States Dollars. The exchange rates used for the translation of the financial
statements are shown in note 28.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under IFRS but do not fall under the scope of IFRS 3 in relation to
the combination of the company and its direct subsidiary Norconsult Telematics Ltd. The acquisition of the shares in
Norconsult Telematics Ltd by Norcon PLC is considered to be a combination of entities under common control.
In the absence of an IFRS that specifically applies to this transaction the company has relied on the hierarchy in IAS 8,
paragraphs 10 12 to decide on the appropriate accounting treatment. Specifically, the following relevant hierarchy has been
checked whether it applies to the transaction:
•

IFRS and interpretations

•

Definitions, recognition and measurement principles in the framework

•

Recent pronouncements for other standard setting bodies with similar framework

•

Other accounting literature

•

Accepted industry practice

The income and expenses of the subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date of the
combination. The underlying carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries have been recorded on the
combination date. When the cost of acquiring of the shares in the subsidiary company is less that the respective underlying
net assets value of this subsidiary, the difference is credited to a merger reserve in the shareholder’s equity.
Business combinations
The acquisition of subsidiaries in Norconsult Telematics Limited is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the
conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date, except for non current assets
(or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations, which are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell.
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:
•

deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

•

liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with IFRS 2 Share based Payment at the acquisition date; and

•

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.
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NORCON PLC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

Year ended 31 December 2011
2.

Accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in the statement of
comprehensive income.
The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
Minority interests in the net assets (excluding goodwill) of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Minority interests consist of the amount of those interests as the date of the original business combination and
the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.
Non controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is
made on a transaction by transaction basis. Other types of non controlling interests are measured at fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another IFRS.
When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition date fair value and included
as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the
‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date.
The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with IAS 39, or IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate
if that interest were disposed of.
If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognised at that date.
Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are initially recognised at cost and are
accounted for by the equity method of accounting.
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NORCON PLC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

Year ended 31 December 2011
2.

Accounting policies (continued)

Segmental reporting
A segment is a component of the Group distinguishable by economic activity (business segment), or by its geographical
location (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group and the revenue can
be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable as per the invoiced amount for the sale of
services net of rebates and discounts. Revenues earned by the Group are recognised on the following bases:
•

Rendering of services
Sales of services are recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered by reference to completion
of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services to
be provided.

•

Work executed
Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognized by reference to the progress of completion of the contract
based on the provisions of each contract.
Revenue from time and material contracts is recognized at the contractual rates as labour hours are delivered and direct
expenses are incurred and is based on the value of work performed as well as on time spent on each contract.
On long term contracts, revenue is recognised on the percentage of completion basis. No profit is taken until the related
contract has progressed to the point where the ultimate realizable profit can be determined reasonably. On other
contracts, revenue is recognized based on the value of work performed. Where the contract outcome cannot be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

•

Interest income
Interest income is recognised based on an accrual basis.

Employee benefits
Provision is made for amounts payable under GCC laws and regulations applicable to employees’ accumulated period of
service at the statement of financial position date.
Equity settled share based payment
Equity settled share payments to employees and directors are measured at the fair value of the equity instrument as of the
grant date 28 July 2008 or the date a significant change to the vesting condition made, the most recent of which date was
16 December 2008.
The fair value of the equity settled share based payment is expensed over the vesting period. The corresponding increase in
equity is credited directly to shareholders’ equity.
This policy is applied to all equity settled share based benefits which were granted on 28 July 2008 and considered as earned
upon approval of the remuneration committee in the given year with vesting as of the anniversary date 28 July in the given
year.
The first year’s vesting condition has been confirmed as satisfied by the remuneration committee as of the vesting date of 28
July, 2009 based on the confirmation by the committee as of 30 March 2009 that the net income condition related to the
approved plan was met.
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NORCON PLC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

Year ended 31 December 2011
2.

Accounting policies (continued)

The second year’s vesting condition has been met and confirmed by the remuneration committee on 22 March 2010 with
vesting on 28 July 2010 and admission of those shares to AIM London stock exchange in February 2011.
LTIP vesting condition for the 2010 and 2011 financial years have not been met and therefore no additional shares have been
issued under the plan for 2010 and 2011.
Debtors and provisions for bad debts
Bad debts are written off to the statement of comprehensive income and a specific provision is made, where it is considered
necessary. No general provision for bad debts is made. Trade debtors are stated after deducting the specific provision for bad
and doubtful debts, if any.
Finance income
Finance income includes interest income which is recognised based on an accrual basis.
Finance costs
Interest expense and other borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as incurred.
Foreign currency translation
(1)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the Group’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in United
States Dollars (US$), which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

(2)

Translation from functional to presentation currency
The results and financial position of the Group are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(3)

(i)

assets and liabilities for each consolidated statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing
rate at the reporting date;

(ii)

income and expenses for each consolidated statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); The exchange rates used are disclosed in note 28 and

(iii)

all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity as a cumulative translation
reserve.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Tax
Current tax liabilities and assets are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities,
using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date.
Dividends
Interim dividends are recognised in equity in the year in which they are paid. Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders
is recognised in the Group’s financial statements in the year in which they are approved by the Group’s shareholders.
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NORCON PLC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

Year ended 31 December 2011
2.

Accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight line method so as to write off the cost of each asset to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The annual depreciation rates used are as follows:
%
20
15-33,33
15-33,33

Motor vehicles
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Computer hardware and software cost
The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, the asset is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount.
Expenditure for repairs and maintenance of property, plant and equipment is charged to the statement of comprehensive
income of the year in which it is incurred. The cost of major renovations and other subsequent expenditure are included in the
carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard
of performance of the existing asset will flow to the Group. Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of
the related asset.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Trade receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value and are subsequently measured at cost. Appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows.
Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held to maturity investments and available for sale financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition.
•

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
This category has two sub categories: financial assets held for trading and those designated at fair value through profit
or loss at inception. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss at inception are those that are managed
and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented investment
strategy. Information about these financial assets is provided internally on a fair value basis to the Group’s key
management personnel. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if they are either held for trading or are
expected to be realised within twelve months from the reporting date. During the year the Group did not hold any
investments in this category.
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NORCON PLC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

Year ended 31 December 2011
2.
•

Accounting policies (continued)
Held to maturity investments
Held to maturity investments are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, that do not meet the definition of
loans and receivables. During the year, the Group did not hold any investments in this category.

•

Available for sale financial assets
Available for sale financial assets are non derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any
of the other categories. They are included in non current assets, unless management intends to dispose of the
investment within twelve months of the reporting date. During the year the Group did not hold any investments in this
category.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date which is the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of
comprehensive income. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available for sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held to maturity investments are carried at cost.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘’financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’’ category
are presented in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active
(and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of
recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same and discounted cash
flow analysis, making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity specific inputs. Equity
investments for which fair values cannot be measured reliably are recognised at cost less impairment.
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available for sale financial assets the cumulative loss which is measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, is removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are included
in borrowings in current liabilities.
Borrowings
Borrowings are recorded initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Trade payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at cost.

23

225353 Norcon pp17-pp42 31/05/2012 15:36 Page 24

NORCON PLC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

Year ended 31 December 2011
2.

Accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when:
•

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

•

the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or

•

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill
At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in the statement of comprehensive income, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master
netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The difference between the fair value of the consideration received by the Company
and the nominal value of the share capital being issued is taken to the share premium account.
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NORCON PLC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

Year ended 31 December 2011
2.

Accounting policies (continued)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made. Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement
is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
Non current liabilities
Non current liabilities represent amounts that are due more than twelve months from the reporting date.
Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities are disclosed if the confirmation of the expense or loss is considered possible from future events.
Events after the reporting period
Current assets and liabilities of the company are adjusted to reflect any events after the reporting period and include additional
information for amounts calculated on the basis ruling at the statement of financial position date.
Comparatives
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

3.

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors
The Group is exposed to market price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, currency risk, capital risk management
and business risk arising from the financial instruments it holds. The risk management policies employed by the Group to
manage these risks are discussed below:
3.1

Market price risk
Market price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.
The Group’s available for sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are susceptible to
market price risk arising from uncertainties about future prices of the investments. The Group’s market price risk is
managed through by investing in fully controlled subsidiaries as well as in associates in which it exercises significant
influence and by continuously monitoring the factors that affect their value.

3.2

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s Management monitors the interest rate fluctuations on a
continuous basis and acts accordingly.

3.3

Credit risk
Credit risk arises when a failure by counter parties to discharge their obligations could reduce the amount of future cash
inflows from financial assets on hand at the statement of financial position date. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales of services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history and monitors on a continuous
basis the ageing profile of its receivables.
The group monitors receivables on an ongoing basis and continuously follows up outstanding balances for collection.
The credit risk on liquid funds is limited, as the counter parties are well known banks, with high credit rating by
international credit rating agencies.
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2.

Accounting policies (continued)
The maximum exposure to credit risk for the group is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset as
disclosed in the financial statements.
In line with the high concentration of revenue from two clients, (note 6) accounts receivable are similarly concentrated
(note 17). While based on past experience this has worked out without any problems for the Group, such concentration
does imply potentially greater credit risk.

3.4

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that arises when the maturity of assets and liabilities does not match. An unmatched position
potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of losses. The Group has procedures with the object of
minimising such losses such as maintaining sufficient cash.

3.5

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
Currency risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the Group’s measurement currency. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures primarily with respect to the US Dollar against the Euro and local currencies listed in note
28.The Group’s Management monitors the exchange rate fluctuations on a continuous basis and acts accordingly.

3.6

Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from last year.

3.7

Business risks
The Group has renewed its major clients at virtually a 100% rate in prior years, with major client relationships lasting in
excess of ten years. While the Group aims to work (and frequently does so) through Master Purchase Agreements or
Frame Agreements that cover a multi year period, it does renew contracts on an annual basis. While this practice has
worked very well for the Group during its period of operations, contract renewing on an annual basis as well as high a
concentrated client basis (notes 6 and 17) do convey a certain extent of business risk should in future contracts are not
renewed and/or receivables are not collected.

Fair value estimation
The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts at the reporting date.

4.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:
•

Income taxes
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
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5.

Segmental analysis

The consolidated entity operates in one business segment (telecommunications, IT and defence systems consulting) for
primary reporting and three geographical segments for secondary reporting being as follows: Europe, Middle East and Asia.
2011

Europe
US$

Results
Income for the year

(1.560.153)

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets
Segment liabilities

4.549.799

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

2.116.264 44.800.553
(376.100) (21.470.422)

Other segment information
Acquisition/(disposal) of fixed assets
Depreciation
Net cash flow

2010
Results
Income for the year

560.039

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Total
US$
3.549.685

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

1.553.131 48.469.948
(1.271.275) (23.117.797)

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

(3.150)
3.071
(2.106.108)

26.241
51.424
2.647.428

–
65
(78.234)

23.091
54.560
463.086

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Europe
US$

Middle East
US$

Asia
US$

Total
US$

(2.784.282)

6.903.808

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

4.220.726 39.724.357
(383.215) (20.328.805)

Other segment information
Acquisition/(disposal) of fixed assets
Depreciation
Net cash flow

Asia
US$

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets
Segment liabilities

6.

Middle East
US$

175.062

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

4.294.586

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

456.402 44.401.485
(846.448) (21.558.468)

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

(1.066)
5.287
1.961.705

133.597
46.052
3.128.260

–
1.968
(41.241)

132.531
53.307
5.048.724

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

2011
US$
66.573.366

2010
US$
68.597.874

Revenue

Value of work executed

––––––––––––

66.573.366

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––

68.597.874

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

The Group’s revenues are highly concentrated with the majority of it earned from its primary client (approximately 79%) with
a further 8% (approximately) coming from its second largest client.

7.

Profit from investing activities
2011
US$
38.127

Interest income

––––––––––––

38.127

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

27

2010
US$
16.574

––––––––––––

16.574

––––––––––––
––––––––––––
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8.

Other expenses
2011
US$
316

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

––––––––––––

316

9.

269

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

2011
US$

2010
US$

54.560
2.625.963
161.694

53.307
2.822.400
164.271

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

2011
US$
2.625.963
–

2010
US$
2.589.060
233.340

Staff costs

Wages and salaries
Expenses related to defined benefits plan

––––––––––––

2.625.963

11.

––––––––––––

Operating profit

Operating profit is stated after charging the following items:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 15)
Staff costs including Directors in their executive capacity (Note 10)
Auditors’ remuneration

10.

2010
US$
269

––––––––––––

2.822.400

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

2011
US$
320.256
268.088
182.292

2010
US$
56.443
322.657
193.376

Finance costs

Net foreign exchange transaction losses
Interest expense
Other finance expenses

––––––––––––

770.636

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

28

––––––––––––

572.476

––––––––––––
––––––––––––
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12.

Tax
2011
US$
1.869.820
4.588

Overseas tax
Defence contribution current year

––––––––––––

Charge for the year

1.874.408

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

2010
US$
2.419.326
1.860

––––––––––––

2.421.186

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the applicable tax rates as
follows:
2011
US$
5.413.923

Profit before tax

Tax calculated at the applicable tax rates
Tax effect of allowances and income not subject to tax
Defence contribution current year
Overseas tax during the year

Corporation
Corporation
Corporation
Corporation
Corporation
Corporation
Corporation

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

541.392
(541.392)
4.588
1.869.820

671.347
(671.347)
1.860
2.419.326

––––––––––––

Tax charge

1.874.408

tax
tax
tax
tax
tax
tax
tax

by country of operations:
for Kuwait
for Saudi Arabia
for South East Asia
for Malaysia
for Norway
for Oman

2010
US$
6.713.471

––––––––––––

2.421.186

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

2011
US$
299.409
1.114.772
417.286
3.601
31.914
2.838

2010
US$
371.721
1.876.221
128.865
–
42.519
–

––––––––––––

1.869.820

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––

2.419.326

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

The corporation tax rate is 10%. The Board of Directors have decided to register the company as a Cyprus tax resident, as
it is deemed that the management and control of the company is exercised in Cyprus. In this respect tax computation under
Cyprus tax law has been prepared.
Under certain conditions interest income may be subject to defence contribution at the rate of 15% (10% to 30 August 2011).
In such cases this interest will be exempt from corporation tax. In certain cases, dividends received from abroad may be
subject to defence contribution at the rate of 20% for the tax years 2012 and 2013 and 17% for 2014 and thereafter (in 2011
the rate was 15% up to 30 August 2011 and 17% thereafter).
Income tax on the Saudi Arabia branch has been provided on the estimated taxable profit at 20% (2010: 20%).
Income tax on the Kuwait branch has been provided on the estimated taxable profit at 15% (2010: 15%).
Income tax on the SE Asia Operations branch has been provided on the estimated taxable profit at 25% plus 20% on the
profit after tax repatriation of profits (2010: 28% plus 20% on the profit after tax repatriation of profits).
Income tax of the Malaysia branch has been provided on the estimated taxable profit at 25%.
The subsidiary company in Norway is subject to 28% tax of its income.
The subsidiary company in Oman is subject to income tax at the rate of 12% on taxable income in excess of RO30.000.
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13.

Profit per share attributable to equity holders of the parent

Basic earnings per share

2011

Profit attributable to shareholders (US$)

3.549.685

––––––––––––

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year
Basic earnings per share (cent)

48.800.808

––––––––––––

7,27

Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to shareholders (US$)

47.174.875

––––––––––––

9,10

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

2011

2010
4.294.586

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

48.800.808

48.800.808

–
48.800.808

411.232
49.212.040

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Diluted earnings per share (cent)

4.294.586

––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

3.549.685

Ordinary shares issued
Shares deemed to be issued:
Warrants (note)

2010

7,27

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

8,72

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

2011
US$

2010
US$

Note: The warrants expired on 28 July 2011 without been excercised.

14.

Dividends

Final dividend paid

1.151.699

––––––––––––

1.151.699

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

4.860.000

––––––––––––

4.860.000

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

In October 2011, the Board of Directors paid dividend of US$1.151.699 out of the 2010 profits.
The Board now proposes to pay out a dividend of at least 25% of net income going forward, on an annual basis, as a policy.
As the Company did not pay an interim dividend for this financial year, the final dividend for 2011 will be US$1,000,000,
payable following the AGM in June 2012. The Board will also consider special dividends each year as a case by case basis.
Our policy will likewise be to pay an interim dividend in the coming years.
Dividends are subject to a deduction of special contribution for defence at the rate of 17% (15% to 30 August 2011) for
individual shareholders that are resident in Cyprus. Dividends payable to non residents of Cyprus are not subject to such a
deduction.
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15.

Property, plant and equipment

Cost
Balance at 1 January 2010
Additions
Exchange differences
Written off
Balance at 31 December 2010/ 1 January 2011
Additions
Disposals
Exchange differences
Written off
Balance at 31 December 2011
Depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2010
Charge for the year
Exchange differences
Written off
Balance at 31 December 2010/1 January 2011
Charge for the year
On disposals
Exchange differences
Written off
Balance at 31 December 2011

Computer
hardware
and
software
US$

Total
US$

9.520
118.360
–
–

447.797
14.260
(1.076)
(492)

252.120
4.987
1.460
(4.968)

709.437
137.607
384
(5.460)

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

127.880
–
(9.520)
–
–

460.489
21.872
(3.150)
–
(5.184)

253.599
18.300
–
773
–

841.968
40.172
(12.670)
773
(5.184)

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

118.360

474.027

272.675

865.062

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

3.968
25.575
–
–

419.008
7.500
(1.080)
(492)

193.191
20.232
431
(4.699)

616.167
53.307
(649)
(5.191)

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

29.543
24.939
–
–
(7.137)

424.936
8.339
(1.136)
–
(5.184)

209.155
21.282
–
368
–

663.634
54.560
(1.136)
368
(12.321)

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

47.345

426.955

230.805

71.015

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

98.337

Balance at 31 December 2010

––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Net book amount
Balance at 31 December 2011

16.

Motor
vehicles
US$

Furniture,
fixtures
and office
equipment
US$

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

47.072

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

35.553

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

41.870

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

44.444

––––––––––––

705.105

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

159.957

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

178.334

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

2011
US$

2010
US$

591.560
(1.349)

592.925
(1.365)

Investments in associated undertakings

Balance at 1 January
Share of results of associates before tax

––––––––––––

Balance at 31 December

590.211

––––––––––––

591.560

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

2011
US$

2010
US$

The details of the investments are as follows:

Name

Country of
incorporation

Principal
activities

2011
Holding
%

2010
Holding
%

Norconsult Telematics
(Saudi) Ltd

Saudi Arabia

Dormant

50

50

590.211

––––––––––––

590.211

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

31

591.560

––––––––––––

591.560

––––––––––––
––––––––––––
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16.

Investments in associated undertakings (continued)

Significant aggregate amounts in respect of associated undertakings:
2011
US$
Assets
Current assets

1.338.424

––––––––––––

1.338.424

––––––––––––

Liabilities
Current liabilities

158.002

––––––––––––

158.002

––––––––––––

Net assets

1.180.422

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Expenses

(2.698)

––––––––––––

Net loss after tax

17.

(2.698)

2010
US$
1.338.354

––––––––––––

1.338.354

––––––––––––

155.234

––––––––––––

155.234

––––––––––––

1.183.120

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

(2.729)

––––––––––––

(2.729)

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

2011
US$

2010
US$

20.477.765
499.875
10.119.654
–
956.863
3.208.262
1.324

20.188.922
3.903.438
4.425.238
70.889
788.097
2.179.819
–

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Retentions receivable
Unbilled receivables
Directors’ current accounts debit balances
Deposits and prepayments
Other receivables
Refundable VAT

––––––––––––

35.263.743

––––––––––––

31.556.403

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

2011
US$

2010
US$

5.668.793
4.078.105
2.259.587
1.736.170
6.735.110

9.277.692
5.268.148
4.612.564
631.473
399.045

As at 31 December, the ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

Up to 30 days
31 60 days
61 90 days
91 120 days
More than 120 days

––––––––––––

20.477.765

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––

20.188.922

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

The fair values of trade and other receivables due within one year approximate to their carrying amounts as presented above.
The exposure of the Group to credit risk and impairment losses in relation to trade and other receivables is reported in note
3 of the financial statements.
Included in trade receivables are amounts totalling US$17,12m (2010: US$16,88m) due from Government and quasi
Government institutions from the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia out of which approximately US$3,04m (2010: US$Nil) is more than
one year old.
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17.

Trade and other receivables (continued)

Included in unbilled receivables are amounts totaling US$9,73m (2010: US$4,34m) due from Government and quasi
Government institutions also from the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia out of which US$8,5m was subsequently billed to the
customer. In addition,approximately US$1,09m (2010: US$Nil) is more than one year old.
Included in other receivables are interest free loans extended to employees via the company’s Saudi Arabia branch.
Certain trade receivable invoices are assigned to a local bank in Saudi Arabia against a short term loan.
Based on past experience the Group had not faced any problems in recovering its receivables. It should be mentioned that
approximately 82% of the receivables relate to the Group’s primary client, while approximately another 8% emanates from its
second largest client.

18.

Cash at bank and in hand

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash and cash equivalents include the following:

Cash at bank and in hand
Bank overdrafts (Note 21)

2011
US$

2010
US$

12.456.037
–

12.075.188
(82.237)

––––––––––––

12.456.037

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––

11.992.951

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

The exposure of the Group to credit risk and impairment losses in relation to cash and cash equivalents is reported in note 3
of the financial statements.
Short term deposits amounting to US$6.147.464 (2010: US$5.230.646) represent deposits kept with the bank against
guarantees issued by the bank in favour of Department of Zakat and Income tax to issue No Objection Letters for release of
retention money from the customers relating to the company’s Saudi Arabia branch.
An amount of US$650.550 is blocked as guarantee for performance bond given by the company’s branch in Abu Dhabi to its
client.

19.

Share capital
2011
Number of
shares

Authorised
Ordinary shares of Stg£0,01 each

100.000.000
––––––––––––
––––––––––––

2011
GBP

2010
Number of
shares

1.000.000 100.000.000

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

US$
Issued and fully paid
Balance at 1 January
Issue shares of Stg£0,01 each under employee share
based payment benefit
Issue of shares of Stg£0,01 each
Balance at 31 December

2010
GBP
1.000.000

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

US$

48.800.808

937.100

41.881.521

833.117

–
–

–
–

758.333
6.160.954

11.699
92.284

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

48.800.808

937.100

48.800.808

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––

937.100

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Authorised capital
Under its Memorandum the Company fixed its share capital at 100.000.000 ordinary shares of nominal value of Stg£0,01
each.
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19.

Share capital (continued)

Issued capital
The Company was admitted to trading on 28 July 2008 at AIM London Stock Exchange and issued 41.123.188 ordinary
shares of nominal value of Stg£0,01 each. In connection with the listing a total of 2.246.376 ordinary shares were sold to new
investors out of which 1.123.188 were issued at a share premium of Stg£0,68 per share and were new shares while the other
1.123.188 were sold by existing shareholders. On 9 October 2009, the company made the first issue of LTIP Award plan for
758.833 Ordinary shares Stg£0,01 each, which were admitted for trading at AIM London Stock Exchange. The total number
of shares issued following the admission of these ordinary shares were 41.881.521 (Note 22).
On 29 March 2010, the company issued 3.521.668 new ordinary shares of Stg£0,01 each at a share premium of Stg£0,74
per share (cum dividend). On 9 April 2010 the company issued 2.639.286 ordinary shares of Stg£0,01 each at a share
premium of Stg£0,69 per share (ex dividend).
On 28 July 2010, the company made the second issue of LTIP Award plan for 758.333 ordinary shares Stg£0,01 each which
were admitted for trading on AIM London Stock Exchange in February 2011. The total number of shares issued thereafter are
48.800.808 ordinary shares (Note 22).

20.

Other reserves

Balance at 1 January 2010
Exchange difference arising on the
translation and consolidation of
foreign companies’ financial
statements
Issue of share capital
Equity settled employee benefits
reserve (Note 22)
Balance at 31 December 2010/
1 January 2011
Exchange difference arising on the
translation and consolidation of
foreign companies’ financial
statements
Balance at 31 December 2011

Share
premium
US$

Merger
reserve
US$

Statutory
reserve
US$

Equity
settled
employee
benefits
US$

–

7.647.006

(1.641)

566.684

(118.307)

8.093.742

–
6.257.283

–
–

–
–

–
–

(14.575)
–

(14.575)
6.257.283

–

–

–

233.340

Translation
reserve
US$

Total
US$

–

233.340

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

6.257.283

7.647.006

(1.641)

800.024

(132.882)

14.569.790

–

––––––––––––

6.257.283

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

–

––––––––––––

7.647.006

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

–

––––––––––––

(1.641)

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

–

––––––––––––

800.024

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

100.969

––––––––––––

(31.913)

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

100.969

––––––––––––

14.670.759

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Note
The commercial Company Law of Oman requires 10% of the company’s profit to be transferred to a non distributable legal
reserve until the amount becomes equal to one third of the issued share capital.
Exchange differences relating to the translation of the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations from their functional
currencies to the Group’s presentation currency (i.e. United States dollars) are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulate in the foreign currency translation reserve. Exchange differences previously accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal or partial disposal of the foreign operation.
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21.

Borrowings

Current borrowings
Bank overdrafts (Note 18)
Bank loans

2011
US$

2010
US$

–
5.327.290

82.237
5.937.631

––––––––––––

5.327.290

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––

6.019.868

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Note
•

The short term loan is secured over the assignment of certain trade receivable invoices. It carries interest at commercial
rates and is repayable within next fiscal year.

•

The bank overdraft relates to the Saudi Arabia branch of the subsidiary company and is secured by a guarantee from
the subsidiary. It carries interest at commercial rates.

22.

Share based payment

The company has adopted a Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for eligible employees and directors.
The initial plan provides for 2.274.999 shares to be granted to these employees and directors over a three year period. These
shares represent 5,25% of the company’s issued share capital. This initial award will count towards the company’s overall
dilution limit for employee shares schemes of 10% in any ten year rolling period.
As per the initial LTIP award, one third of the award will vest and become exercisable on the first anniversary of the date of
the grant, one third on the second anniversary of the date of the grant and the balance on the third anniversary of the date of
the grant subject to satisfying the only vesting condition of the 10% growth in the net income year over year.
The company’s board of directors remuneration committee on its meeting of 4 April, 2011 has amended the performance
target for the third tranche of the award as follows:
In the event that the performance target is not achieved in relation to the 2010 financial year, the third tranche of the award
shall not lapse and shall instead continue in existence (subject to the rules of the Plan) and shall vest on the fourth anniversary
of the original date of grant if the consolidated net income of the group for 2011 is equal to or greater than 1.1 times the
consolidated net income of the group for 2010;
In the event that the performance target is not achieved in relation to the 2011 financial year, the third tranche of the award
shall not lapse and shall instead continue in existence (subject to the rules of the Plan) and shall vest on the fifth anniversary
of the original date of grant if the consolidated net income of the group for 2012 is equal to or greater than 1.1 times the
consolidated net income of the group for 2011; and
To the extent that the performance target is not achieved in relation to any of the 2010, 2011 and 2012 financial years, the
third tranche of the award shall lapse.
The company had adopted one share based award plan which is described below:
Type of arrangement:
Date of grant:
Number of share granted:
Contractual life:
Vesting condition:

Senior management and directors share benefits award plan
28 July, 2008
2.274.999 ordinary shares
5 years
Increase in consolidated net profit of 10% over the previous year’s net profit

The estimated fair value of each share granted to the above individuals is Stg£0,35 per share. This is based on the free market
offer received by Finncap (the company’s underwriters) at around the last amendment to the LTIP agreement in December
2008.
On 9 October 2009, the company made the first issue of LTIP Award plan for 758.833 Ordinary shares Stg£0,01 each,
admitted trading on AIM London Stock Exchange. The total number of shares issued following the admission of these ordinary
shares were 41.881.521.
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22.

Share based payment (continued)

On 28 July 2010, the company made the second issue of LTIP Award plan for 758.333 ordinary shares Stg£0,01 each which
were admitted for trading on AIM London stock exchange in February 2011. The total number of shares issued thereafter are
48.800.808 ordinary shares.
The company has a long term investment plan (LTIP) in place for key employees. LTIP vesting conditions for 2010 and 2011
financial years have not been met, therefore no shares have been issued under the plan for 2010 and 2011.

23.

Employees’ terminal benefits
Employees’
terminal
benefits
US$

Balance at 1 January 2010
Charged to consolidated statement of comprehensive income

7.300.495
2.486.311

––––––––––––

9.786.806
728.084

Balance at 31 December 2010/ 1 January 2011
Charged to consolidated statement of comprehensive income

––––––––––––

10.514.890

Balance at 31 December 2011

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Provision is made for amounts payable under GCC laws and regulations applicable to employees’ accumulated period of
service at the statement of financial position.

24.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables
Directors’ current accounts credit balances
Accruals
Other creditors

2011
US$

2010
US$

4.031.880
650
1.460.015
1.050.028

1.272.127
449
2.231.711
461.991

––––––––––––

6.542.573

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––

3.966.278

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

The fair values of trade and other payables due within one year approximate to their carrying amounts as presented above.

25.

Current tax liabilities

Corporation tax
Special contribution for defence

2011
US$

2010
US$

728.461
4.583

1.783.666
1.850

––––––––––––

733.044

––––––––––––
––––––––––––
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25.

Current tax liabilities (continued)

Corporation tax liabilities/(refunds) by country of operations:

Cyprus
Saudi Arabia
South East Asia
Norway
Kuwait
Malaysia

2011
US$

2010
US$

(200.271)
(311.605)
937.447
31.915
267.374
3.601

(204.957)
880.399
694.308
42.195
371.721
–

––––––––––––

728.461

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

26.

––––––––––––

1.783.666

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Related party transactions

The Company’s majority shareholders are: 47,19% Norconsult Telematics Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in
Cyprus, 13,53% Mr. Gaute Vik, company director, 5,61% Mr. Arnold Rorholt, company director, 7,03% Henderson Global
Investors, 4,81% AXA Investment Managers, 4,71% Gartmore Investment Management with the remaining 17,12% ownership
belonging to a number of shareholders comprising less than 4,0% each.
The following transactions were carried out with related parties:
26.1 Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key management was as follows:

Salaries and benefits
Service awards and bonuses

2011
US$

2010
US$

2,277,373
–

2,339,749
233,340

––––––––––––

2,277,373

Individual
Trond Tostrup
Kenneth West
Jorn Longem
Arnold Rorholt
Gaute Vik
Marne Martin

––––––––––––

2,573,089

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

2011
US$

2010
US$

102,500
74,502
74,500
984,989
571,280
469,602

100,000
72,000
72,000
1,047,372
526,062
522,315

––––––––––––

2,277,373

––––––––––––

2,339,749

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

LTIP No of
Shares

Value
In US$

36,111
36,111
36,111
216,667
216,666
144,445
72,222

11,111
11,111
11,111
66,669
66,669
44,446
22,223

Related to the LTIP awarded in 2010 (no LTIP was awarded in 2011):
Individual
Trond Tostrup
Kenneth West
Jorn Longem
Arnold Rorholt
Gaute Vik
Marne Martin
Arne Dag Aanensen

––––––––––––

758,333

––––––––––––
––––––––––––
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27.

Shareholders holding more than 4% of share capital

The shareholders holding more than 4% of the share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2011 were:
31 December 31 December
2011
2010
%
%
Norconsult Telematics Holdings Ltd
Gaute Vik
Henderson Global Investors
AXA Investment Managers
Arnold Rorholt
Gartmore Investment Management

28.

47,19
13,53
7,03
4,81
5,61
4,71

47,19
13,53
2,70
9,13
5,61
4,71

Exchange rates

The exchange rates against the US$ used for the translation of the financial statements of branches/entities which are using
a different functional currency were:
2011

2010

2009

End of the year rates
SAR
AED
RO
KD
MYR
NOK

3,75
3,676
0,3840
0,2781
0,3153
5,9950

3,75
3,676
0,3840
0,2807
–
5,8962

3,75
3,676
0,3840
0,2859
–
5,8065

Average rates
SAR
AED
RO
KD
MYR
NOK

3,75
3,676
0,3840
0,2794
0,3153
5,9456

3,75
3,676
0,3840
0,2833
–
5,8514

3,75
3,676
0,3832
0,2859
–
6,3611

29.

Contingent liabilities

The banker of the Saudi Arabia branch has given bank guarantees limited to the equivalent of US$6.156.450 (2010:
US$6.303.153) in respect of contract performance.
Letters of guarantee (Performance Bonds) for the group’s operations in UAE Abu Dhabi amounting to US$2.602.200 (2010:
US$1.220.400) were in issue as at 31 December 2011. An amount of US$650.550 (which represents 25% of the performance
bond) is blocked from the branch’s bank balances as security for the issue of this performance bond with the remaining
balance being secured by the issue of a corporate guarantee from the Branch’s ultimate holding company Norcon Plc. Also
a letter of guarantee for AED50.000 for the registration of the Norconsult Abu Dhabi branch was in issue as at 31 December
2011 (2010: AED50.000).
A bank guarantee amounting to US$242.181 RO93.000 (2010: US$33.854 RO 13.000) was issued by the Group’s subsidiary
in Oman.
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30.

Commitments

Operating lease commitments
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating leases are as follows:
2011
US$
Within one year

103.545

––––––––––––

103.545

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

31.

2010
US$
93.978

––––––––––––

93.978

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Events after the reporting period

The Board of Directors recommend a dividend of US$1.000.000 to be declared out of the 2011 profits.
The group have in first quarter 2012, opened a number of corporate entities in North America in order to pursue opportunities
in the 4G and related technological space to meet subcontractor needs from a leading equipment vendor and certain other
clients.
The company has provided a corporate guarantee of US$750.000 to its subsidiary company Norconsult Telematics Limited
in favour of Societe Generale Bank Cyprus Limited as security among others for credit facilities provided by the bank to the
subsidiary.
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Revenue
Income from work executed
Other operating income
Interest income

Page

2011
US$

2010
US$

41

10.684.296

12.079.690

38.127

Operating expenses
Administration expenses

––––––––––––

10.722.423

12.096.264

(4.536.199)

Other operating expenses
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
42

––––––––––––

6.186.224

7.287.581
––––––––––––

6.185.908
(770.636)
(1.349)

7.287.312
(572.476)
(1.365)

5.413.923

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

40

(269)

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

Net profit for the year before tax

(4.808.683)

––––––––––––

(316)

Operating profit
Finance costs
Share of results of associates before tax

16.574

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

6.713.471

––––––––––––
––––––––––––
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2011
US$
Income
Value of work executed

66.573.366

Cost of sales
Consulting fees
Cost of work executed

––––––––––––

883.353
55.005.717

225.172
56.293.012

55.889.070

––––––––––––

10.684.296

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

41

68.597.874

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

Gross profit from work executed

2010
US$

––––––––––––

56.518.184

––––––––––––

12.079.690

––––––––––––
––––––––––––
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Finance Cost
Year ended 31 December 2011
2011
US$

2010
US$

268.031
42
15

321.836
–
821

182.292

193.376

Finance costs
Interest expense
Bank overdraft interest
Other interest
Interest on taxes
Other finance expenses
Bank charges
Net foreign exchange transaction losses
Realised exchange loss

320.256

––––––––––––

770.636

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

42

56.443

––––––––––––

572.476

––––––––––––
––––––––––––
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
To the Members of Norcon plc (“the Company”)
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 28 June 2012 at the registered
office of the Company, Fort Anne, Douglas, Isle of Man, IM1 5PD at precisely 12 noon for the following purposes:

Ordinary Business
To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions which will be proposed as ordinary resolutions:
1.

to receive and adopt the Company's annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 together with the
directors' report and auditors' report on those accounts;

2.

to declare a final dividend of US$0.020491 per ordinary share of £0.01 par value each in the capital of the Company in
respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2011, to be paid to all holders of ordinary shares appearing in the
register of members of the Company at 5 April 2012 (“the Record Date”) within six months of such Record Date;

3.

to re-elect, as a director of the Company, Mr. Trond Tostrup who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for
re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association (the “Articles”) of the Company;

4.

to re-elect, as a director of the Company, Mr. Jorn Ave Longem who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself
for re-election in accordance with the Articles of the Company; and

5.

to reappoint PKF Savvides & Co Ltd. as auditors to hold office from the conclusion of the meeting to the conclusion of
the next general meeting of the Company at which the accounts are laid before shareholders at a remuneration to be
determined by the directors of the Company.

Special Business
To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution which will be proposed as a special resolution:
6.

that the Directors of the Company be authorised to allot ordinary shares of £0.01 each in the capital of the Company
(“Ordinary Shares”) for cash as if the provisions of Article 5.2 of the Articles did not apply, provided that this power shall
be limited to the allotment of Ordinary Shares up to an aggregate par value equal to 10% of the aggregate par value of
all the Ordinary Shares in issue at the date of this notice, at such prices, to such persons, on such terms and at such
times as the Directors of the Company may from time to time determine in their discretion, such authority to expire on
the earlier of the next annual general meeting of the Company and 15 months after the date on which this resolution is
passed, save that the Company may before such expiry make an offer or agreement which would or might require
Ordinary Shares to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot Ordinary Shares pursuant to such offer or
agreement as if such authority had not expired.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Director
Date 31 May 2012
Norcon Plc
Fort Anne
Douglas
Isle of Man
IM1 5PD
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
To the Members of Norcon plc (“the Company”)
Notes:
1.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the above-mentioned meeting is entitled to appoint another person as his
proxy to attend, to speak and to vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2.

To be effective, forms of proxy must be lodged at the Company's registered office, Fort Anne, Douglas, Isle of Man, IM1 5PD, not later
than 12 noon on 26 June 2012. Lodgement of a form of proxy will not prevent a member from attending and voting in person.

3.

The Company, pursuant to Regulation 22 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2006 (Isle of Man), specifies that only those
members reg¬istered in the register of members as at 12 noon on 26 June 2012 (or in the event that the meeting is adjourned, on the
register of members 48 hours before the time of any adjournment meeting) shall be entitled to attend or vote at the meeting in respect
of the ordinary shares registered in their name at that time. Changes to entries on the register of members after 12 noon on 26 June
2012 (or, in the event that the meeting is adjourned, on the reg¬ister of members less than 48 hours before the time of any adjourned
meeting) shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend or vote at the meeting.

4.

CREST members who wish to appoint a Proxy or Proxies through the CREST electronic Proxy appointment service may do so for the
AGM and any adjournment thereof by using the procedures described in the CREST manual. CREST personal members or other
CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service provider(s), should refer to their CREST
sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate action on their behalf. In order for a Proxy appointment
or instruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropriate CREST message (a ‘CREST Proxy Instruction’) must be
properly authenticated in accordance with CREST Co’s specifications and must contain the information required for such instructions,
as described in the CREST manual. All messages relating to the appointment of a Proxy or an instruction to a previously appointed
Proxy must be transmitted so as to be received by the Registrars no later than 12 noon on 26 June 20011. Normal system timings
and limitations will apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy instructions. It is therefore the responsibility of the CREST member
concerned to take such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any
particular time. In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsor(s) or voting service provider(s) are
referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST manual concerning practical limitations of the CREST system and timings. The
Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 18(4)(a) of the Uncertificated
Securities Regulations 2006 (Isle of Man).
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NORCON PLC
(the “Company”)
FORM OF PROXY
I/We ................................................................................................................................................................................................................
of ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................
........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
being a shareholder of the Company hereby appoint the Chairman of the meeting or (see note 3)
........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
as my/our proxy to attend, to speak and to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at
12 noon on 28 June 2012 and at any adjournment thereof.
Please indicate with an “X” in the space below how you wish your votes to be cast in respect of the resolutions which are set out in the notice
convening the Annual General Meeting (the “Notice”). If no specific direction as to voting is given, the proxy will vote or abstain from voting at
his/her discretion
Ordinary Resolutions
1. To receive and adopt the Company's annual accounts for the financial year ended
31 December 2011 together with the directors' report and auditors' report on those
accounts.
2.

to approve the final dividend of US$0.020491 is to be distributed to the shareholders as of
5 April 2012, payable within six months of such Record Date.

3.

to re-elect Mr. Trond Tostrup a director of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

4.

to re-elect Mr. Jorn Ave Longem as a director of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company.

5.

To reappoint PKF Savvides & Co. Ltd. as auditors to hold office from the conclusion of the
meeting to the conclusion of the next general meeting of the Company at which the
accounts are laid before the shareholder, at a remuneration to be determined by the
directors of the Company.

For

Against

Withheld

Special Resolution
6.

to approve the disapplication of Article 5.2 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Date: ............................................................................................

Signature: .....................................................................................

Please tick here if you are appointing more than one proxy.

Number of shares proxy appointed over.

✃

Notes:
1. As a member of the Company you are entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all or any of your rights to attend, speak and vote at a general meeting of the Company. You can only
appoint a proxy using the procedures set out in these notes.
2.

Appointment of a proxy does not preclude you from attending the meeting and voting in person. If you have appointed a proxy and attend the meeting in person, your proxy appointment
will automatically be terminated.

3.

A proxy does not need to be a member of the Company but must attend the meeting to represent you. To appoint as your proxy a person other than the Chairman of the meeting,
insert their full name in the box. If you sign and return this proxy form with no name inserted in the box, the Chairman of the meeting will be deemed to be your proxy. Where you
appoint as your proxy someone other than the Chairman of the meeting, you are responsible for ensuring that they attend the meeting and are aware of your voting intentions.

4.

You may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy is appointed to exercise rights attached to different shares. You may not appoint more than one proxy to exercise rights
attached to any one share. Should you wish to appoint more than one proxy, please photocopy this form. Please indicate in the box underneath the signature block the number of
shares in relation to which they are authorised to act as your proxy. Please also indicate by ticking the box provided if the proxy instruction is one of multiple instructions being given.
All forms must be signed and should be returned together in the same envelope.

5.

To direct your proxy how to vote on the resolutions mark the appropriate box with an “X”. To abstain from voting on a resolution, select the relevant “Withheld” box. A vote withheld
is not a vote in law, which means that the vote will not be counted in the calculation of votes for or against the resolution. If no voting indication is given, your proxy will vote or abstain
from voting at his or her discretion. Your proxy will vote (or abstain from voting) as he or she thinks fit in relation to any other matter which is put before the meeting.

6.

7.

To appoint a proxy using this form, the form must be:
●

completed and signed;

●

sent or delivered to the Company’s registered office to the attention of Cains Fiduciaries Limited, at Fort Anne, Douglas, Isle of Man, IM1 5PD;

●

received by Cains Fiduciaries Limited no later than 12 noon on 26 June 2012.

In the case of a member which is a company, this proxy form must be executed under its common seal or signed on its behalf by an officer of the company or an attorney for the
company.

8.

Any power of attorney or any other authority under which this proxy form is signed (or a duly certified copy of such power or authority) must be included with the proxy form.

9.

In the case of joint holders, where more than one of the joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the appointment submitted by the most senior holder will be accepted. Seniority
is determined by the order in which the names of the joint holders appear in the Company’s register of members in respect of the joint holding (the first-named being the most senior).

10. If you submit more than one proxy appointment, the appointment received last before the latest time for the receipt of proxies will take precedence.
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